PINELANDS CLIMATE COMMITTEE MEETING

This meeting was conducted in-person and available remotely.

The public could view/comment through Pinelands Commission YouTube link:

https://www.youtube.com/c/PinelandsCommission

Zoom Meeting ID: 815 0448 8031

September 30, 2022

Immediately following the 9:30 a.m. Policy & Implementation Committee Meeting

MINUTES

MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE: Chairman Mark Lohbauer, Commission Chair Laura E. Matos, Edward Lloyd, and Jerome H. Irick

MEMBERS ABSENT: Alan W. Avery, Jr.

OTHER COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Theresa Lettman, Doug Wallner

STAFF PRESENT: Susan R. Grogan, Stacey P. Roth, Ed Wengrowski, Steven Simone, Ernest Deman, John Bunnell, Jessica Lynch, Paul Leakan, and Dawn Holgersen. Also present was Jeff Nielsen from the Governor's Authorities Unit.

1. Call to Order

Chairman Lohbauer called the meeting to order at 11:18 a.m.

2. Adoption of the July 29, 2022 Committee meeting minutes

Commission Chair Matos moved the adoption of the July 29, 2022 Committee meeting. Commissioner Irick seconded the motion. All voted in favor.

3. Update on state initiatives

Governor's new Office of Climate Action and the Green Economy

Ms. Grogan informed the committee of a letter recently received from the Governor's Office of Climate Action and the Green Economy (GOCAGE).

She said the GOCAGE is forming a steering committee. She also said that members of the Governor's office, NJ Department of Environmental Protection (NJDEP), Board of Public Utilities (BPU), and Economic Development Authority (EDA) are co-chairs of the committee.

Ms. Grogan said the steering committee will coordinate interagency efforts. She said there will be working groups and non-government experts will be utilized. She said there will be updates to the state's energy master plan, along with work on a variety of other issues and projects. She said the Commission anticipates an invitation to participate sometime in the future.

She said the GOCAGE is in addition to the Interagency Council on Climate Resilience (IAC), which the Commission is currently involved with. She said the staff will keep the Committee updated with any new information as it is received.

Chairman Lohbauer expressed praise for ongoing commitment of the Governor's Office to address those initiatives. He asked whether climate-related Comprehensive Management Plan (CMP) amendment proposals will need to be reviewed by these groups in addition to the standard Commission review. Ms. Grogan replied that it may be necessary. She said there is no guidance from the Governor's Office at this time for those proposals. Chairman Lohbauer mentioned a passage in the letter that may imply that the GOCAGE will seek oversight of such.

<u>Interagency Council on Climate Resilience: agency preparation of "topic-specific" Resilience</u> Action Plans

Ed Wengrowski, the Commission's Environmental Technologies Coordinator, delivered a presentation on the preparation of "topic-specific" Resilience Action Plans (RAP) for the IAC (attached to these minutes and available on the Commission's website through the following link:

https://www.nj.gov/pinelands/home/presentations/Statewide%20Resilience%20Actions%20Plan%20Climate%20Committee%20update%209.30.2022%20(002).pdf)

Mr. Wengrowski said there are about 22 member agencies and entities participating in the IAC. He said the council reevaluated strategies that will be used moving forward. He said the determination is to develop topic-specific initiatives as a short-term scale-back of agency obligations. He said there will be more comprehensive RAPs, but they will be broken down to more manageable parts.

He said the initial request was to develop an agency specific RAP. He said that first plan will now be topic-specific. He said the topic-specific approach complements an addendum that was recently released regarding climate change impacts on human health and communities. He said the addendum was produced by the NJ Department of Health (NJDOH) and NJDEP.

Mr. Wengrowski said that agencies will be asked to provide plans addressing extreme heat and community health. He said the addendum will provide information to use for guidance in developing an action plan.

He said the addendum identifies direct and indirect impacts of extreme weather. He listed the effects as exacerbating respiratory conditions, cardiovascular disease, heat-related stress, increased vector borne diseases, increased frequency of pathogen contamination of food and water, and increased mental health stressors.

Mr. Wengrowski said the due date for the original agency specific RAP was set for October 2023. He said the new directive was issued on September 20th, changing the requirement to a topic-specific RAP. He said the original due date will still apply. He mentioned the 2024 task may cover economic impacts.

He said that the Commission's RAP will identify actions that will be considered and incorporated into policies, programs, and decision-making to address extreme heat and community health. He said the agencies will be assisted by advisory groups comprised of experts in each topic and through a stakeholder engagement process.

He said the next meeting is scheduled for October 11th, where more information regarding the expert advisory groups and templates for the RAPs will be provided.

Chairman Lohbauer mentioned the potential impacts from flooding and how it would affect development approvals. He asked if that may be something that will be discussed as part of the RAP. Mr. Wengrowski said that it may be part of a future discussion. He also said that flooding does relate to extreme heat and could be included as part of the Commission's RAP. He said that other agencies are addressing flooding on top of the current RAP requirements.

In response to Chairman Lohbauer's question as to the development of the RAP leading to CMP amendment language, Mr. Wengrowski said it is likely.

4. New Jersey's No Net Loss Compensatory Restoration Act

Ms. Grogan began by saying that the State's no net loss act has come up during previous Committee meetings, with an interest expressed in creating similar requirements for Pinelands development. Today's presentation will summarize the existing State Act and guide future Committee discussions.

Ms. Roth delivered a presentation on New Jersey's No Net Loss Compensatory Restoration Act (NNL) (attached to these minutes and available on the Commission's website through the following link:

https://nj.gov/pinelands/home/presentations/NNL%20Act%20Presentation%20Climate%20Com mittee%209-30-22.pdf).

Ms. Roth said the NLL applies only to state entities, including state universities and colleges. The Act requires that state entities develop and submit a plan to NJDEP, Division of Parks & Forestry, NJ Forest Service (NJFS), outlining compensatory reforestation for all areas, at least one-half acre in size, owned or maintained by the entity that are scheduled for deforestation.

She said the goal is have no net loss of existing forested area based upon a reasonable and practical Tree Replacement Factor (number of trees required to be planted in reference to the size of the parcel) after development, in accordance with the NNL Act.

Ms. Roth said compensatory reforestation plans are subject to approval by the Division of Parks & Forestry after review and comment by the NJ Community Forestry Council. She said that the Act provides that deforestation of land at least one-half acre in size cannot begin without approval of the state entity's compensatory reforestation plan.

She outlined the hierarchy of compensatory reforestation as: (1) reforestation on-site (adjacent to the deforested area); (2) reforestation on state or municipal property within the municipality in which the deforestation occurred; (3) reforestation on a site within five miles of the site of deforestation on lands owned or maintained by the state entity; (4) reforestation off-site, beyond five miles of the deforestation, on a property owned or maintained by another state entity; and (5) monetary compensation equal to the value of the number of trees required to be replaced if reforestation cannot be conducted on-site.

Ms. Roth said that in her experience with the Garden State Parkway widening project from 2006-2008, most compensation had been monetary. She said grants were established to fund tree planting projects in two municipalities.

Ms. Roth agreed with Ms. Grogan's observation that the monetary compensation is not used by the NJ Forest Service for replanting projects but is instead used to create grants that are given to other organizations who carry out such projects.

Ms. Roth said that state entities that have areas of at least one acre in size scheduled for deforestation must hold at least one public forum to present their plans for deforestation and reforestation.

She informed the Committee that the NNL Act has a section outlining non-applicability. She said that it declares non-state entities, activities deemed by the Division to constitute standard forestry, wildlife management, arboricultural practices, or actively maintained utility easements, or activities conducted or caused to be conducted by the Department of Military and Veteran's Affairs at the Brigadier General William C. Doyle Veterans Memorial Cemetery do not require compliance with the Act.

Ms. Roth said the NNL Program guidelines, established in 2016, include the method for determining the amount of deforestation, the method to calculate the compensatory reforestation obligation, the method of compensatory reforestation, tree establishment period of two years with criteria, project completion and recommendations for not meeting establishment criteria, elements of compensatory reforestation plan, and an application/applicability determination process.

She said that the guidelines were set up using a GIS grid that divides the state into half-acre blocks. She said the analysis of the amount of deforestation uses the grid to determine whether a forest was considered existing, emerging, or seedling. She said emerging or seedling forests would require an on-site evaluation.

Commissioner Lloyd asked if monetary compensation paid in accordance with the NNL Act could be given to private entities. Ms. Roth said that it is unlikely, but she will reach out for clarification.

Commission Chair Matos inquired as to whether there are enforcement regulations for entities that are not in compliance with the Act. Ms. Roth said that there is no provision in the Act but it would likely be addressed by not permitting additional deforestation activities. Ms. Grogan clarified that financial compensation would be required if guidelines were not met within two years.

In response to Chairman Lohbauer's question as to the jurisdiction for review of reforestation plans, Ms. Roth indicated that NJFS is responsible for the review, with support from the NJ Community Forestry Council.

Chairman Lohbauer also asked whether the deforestation around the Bass River fire tower would have required a reforestation plan. Ms. Roth said she is not aware if a plan was required. She also said that if an entity is unsure as to the obligations under the NNL, a determination letter can be issued by the Department.

Ms. Grogan commented that the NNL Act is extensive. She recommended a simpler approach when discussing potential requirements for projects in the Pinelands. She said that she observed a presentation from NJDEP during a recent Pinelands Municipal Council meeting regarding stormwater ordinances and the future implementation of tree removal and replanting ordinances. She said the Commission is monitoring the progress and content of such ordinances.

Commissioner Wallner asked whether study of the genetic material of the saplings is being observed as part of the reforestation plans. Ms. Roth replied that she is not aware of such study. She said that the focus is on the size of the trees planted. Commissioner Wallner clarified his question to express his concern that non-native tree species may be used for replanting. Ms. Grogan said that would be something for the Commission to consider as the CMP already focuses on the importance of planting native species.

Commissioner Lloyd recommended that there should be language stating that more stringent NNL requirements take precedence over those in the Act. Chairman Lohbauer echoed his concerns and mentioned the importance of carbon sequestration. Ms. Roth indicated that there is an amendment to the act being considered in the legislature and offered to contact the sponsors to propose added language. She also said the Act does not have language prohibiting more stringent requirements. She pointed out that the Pinelands Protection Act has language that states that anything that is inconsistent with the Act or the CMP would be considered void and the CMP would take precedence.

5. Discussion of Commissioner Lohbauer's July 28, 2022 suggested climate-related amendments to the Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan

Ms. Grogan delivered a presentation on Chairman Lohbauer's CMP amendment recommendations (attached to these minutes and available on the Commission's website through the following link: https://nj.gov/pinelands/home/presentations/9-30-2022%20Lohbauer%20amendments%20presentation.pdf).

She said that a recommendation was made to add "preamble" language that references the NJ Global Warming Response Act and the need for mitigation.

She said Chairman Lohbauer recommended a requirement that applicants must address climate mitigation by indicating the net effect of the proposed development on climate and proposing mitigating features. She emphasized the need for specific standards. The recommendation included a proposed Climate Mitigation Policy addition to the minimum environmental standards in subchapter 6 to address carbon sequestration, climate-related energy, and climate-related stormwater management.

She said the carbon sequestration policy recommendation would encourage the use of cover crops in agricultural areas, reduce or restrict fossil fuel use, encourage development on already disturbed land, and minimize development on and clearing of forested areas. She explained the recommendation to adopt a NNL policy requiring planting of replacement trees or contribution to the Pinelands Conservation Fund for use in acquiring/preserving forested lands. She recommended the establishment of defined clearing limits for development.

Ms. Grogan said the climate-related energy policy recommendation would require installation of solar or wind energy facilities on new major residential and non-residential projects as site conditions permit. She said the recommendation included language to express a preference or provide incentives for projects that conserve energy use for heating/cooling/lighting and/or use geothermal systems and projects that use energy storage systems in lieu of fossil fuel-based emergency power generation systems. She said that while she agrees with some of this recommendation, she is unsure of the legal ability of the Commission to make and enforce such requirements.

She said the recommended policy would also restrict expansion of commercial fossil fuel-related infrastructure throughout the Pinelands. Chairman Lohbauer commented that this recommendation is controversial but not completely inconsistent with the Governor's direction regarding the use of fossil fuels in the state.

Chairman Lohbauer clarified his recommendation about incentives for energy conserving projects. He said that while cash incentives may not be available to offer, offset items similar to the Pinelands Development Credit program may entice applicants to consider energy conservation in their projects.

Ms. Grogan said the climate-related stormwater management policy recommendation would require the use of pervious materials when the creation of new paved surfaces for driveways and

parking areas is proposed and to require all development applications to include flood planning and stormwater management systems that recognize increased frequency and intensity of rainfall related climate change. She said this recommendation is guided by NJDEP's recent consideration of an emergency rulemaking effort.

She noted that Chairman Lohbauer had other recommendations that pertained to business practices that would be better suited to discuss with the Personnel and Budget Committee.

Ms. Grogan recommended the Committee narrow down the recommendations to a smaller list as a priority for the Commission staff to pursue and research in detail.

Chairman Lohbauer clarified that the priorities should be established as an effort by the entire Committee. Commissioner Irick proposed the selection of three priority items to forward to Commission staff. He also suggested an additional review of the list to help make a determination.

Ms. Grogan reminded the Committee of their previous discussions on potential CMP amendments regarding solar energy facilities. Such amendments should also be part of the prioritization effort.

Chairman Lohbauer and Commission Chair Matos concurred with Commissioner Irick's suggestions and agreed to continue the discussion at the November meeting.

Commission Chair Matos left the meeting at 12:20 p.m.

6. Public comment

Heidi Yeh, Policy Director for the Pinelands Preservation Alliance, said they generally support Chairman Lohbauer's recommendations. She said she would like to focus on one of the solar provisions. She urged the Commission to support the use of smart growth requirements for solar installations to make the switch to alternative energy but it should not be done at the expense of agricultural and natural resource protection.

She said she is enthusiastic about the possibility of the CMP requiring installation on existing impervious services such as rooftops and parking lots before allowing clearing or ground development facilities. She said it's a great idea but she is concerned that it may be ineffective at influencing development decisions since industry experts estimate that installing on parking lots and rooftops is more expensive than ground-mounted facilities.

She said she believes the effort is worth pursuing if the Commission could be creative about ways to require this or encourage it not only to conserve land. She said that it would also be beneficial when researching plans for extreme heat and community health that will be associated with climate change. She noted the fatal conditions of being left inside cars because of the

extreme heat. She said that covering parking lots with solar carports could help address the extreme heat in cars.

Ms. Yeh spoke about the discussion at the previous meeting regarding electric vehicles for the Commission and the driving range of those vehicles. She said that most electric vehicles on the market have a range of over 200 miles on a single charge. She said one could drive the entire perimeter of the Pinelands on a single charge. She said that she believes electric vehicles would be able to meet Commission needs and would be a wise investment of taxpayer funds.

Chairman Lohbauer closed public comment at 12:26 p.m. He stated that public comments could be made by email if anyone was unable to do so during the meeting. He said they would be addressed at the next meeting.

Chairman Lohbauer commented it was an honor to have former Governor Jim Florio serve as Chairman of the Commission several years ago. He said Governor Florio's passing is a great loss to the state. He also described his privilege of befriending Governor Florio while working for the Regional Planning Association. He said they frequently discussed Pinelands issues. He said that Governor Florio expressed his opinion on what working with the Commission meant to him and for the legacy of the people of New Jersey.

There being no further discussion, Commissioner Irick moved to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Lloyd seconded the motion. The meeting concluded at 12:29 p.m.

Certified as true and correct:

Dawn Holgersen Technical Assistant November 14, 2022